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(562) 590-5071 
 

TO:  Commissioners and Interested Persons 
 
FROM: Peter Douglas, Executive Director 
  Sherilyn Sarb, Deputy Director 

Teresa Henry, South Coast District Manager 
  Karl Schwing, Orange County Area Supervisor 
   
SUBJECT: Concurrence with the Executive Director's determination that the action of 

the City of Laguna Beach accepting certification with suggested modifications 
of Major LCP Amendment No. 3-08 is legally adequate.  For Commission 
review at its January 12-14, 2011 meeting in Long Beach. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission concur with the Executive Director's determination 
that the City's action is legally adequate. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Laguna Beach requested to amend its certified Local Coastal Program (LCP) 
to make three unrelated changes to the certified LCP: Part 1) land use designate and zone 
the 8.52 acre site at 1900 Laguna Canyon Road (known as ACT V) to Public/Institutional 
land use designation and Institutional zone; Part 2) amend Land Use Element Policy 12-F 
to allow exceptions to an existing 500 square foot size limit for buildings located in Public 
Recreation and Parks land use designation for structures deemed by the City as 
necessary to provide public benefit uses; and, Part 3) make changes to the 
Implementation Plan to clarify how building heights are measured and parking garage 
regulations, within certain zones. Proposed LCP Amendment Request No. 3-08 was 
submitted for Commission certification by City Council Resolution Nos. 07.077, 08.064, 
and, 08.072.  On March 10, 2010, the Commission approved the amendment subject to 
suggested modifications to bring the amendment into conformity with the policies of 
Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act, and the land use plan. 
 
Part 1 of the amendment request, related to the ‘Act V’ site on Laguna Canyon Road, was 
approved by the Commission as submitted.  However, Parts 2 and 3 raised issues with 
regard to protection of public views, public access and public recreation.  In Part 2, 
concerns were raised that eliminating the 500 square foot limit on structures in the Public 
Recreation and Parks land use designation, would lead to oversize structures on beaches 
that have adverse public view impacts, and would displace public recreational area.  The 
Commission suggested modifications that included a new 2,000 square foot footprint 
limitation on such structures, among other criteria.  The City adopted those suggested 
modifications, but also adopted alternative language to address concerns they had about 
their ability to implement a planned lifeguard headquarters reconstruction.  Since the City 
adopted alternative language, that component of the amendment is being processed as a 
resubmittal (see LGB-MAJ-4-10 on this same agenda), and it is not included as part of this 
Executive Director concurrence.  With regard to Part 3, public view issues were raised by a 
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proposed increase in the maximum height limit in the Local Business/Professional zone, 
and, a proposed deletion of language that requires, where feasible, development seaward 
of Coast Highway be lower than the centerline of Coast Highway.  The Commission’s 
suggested modifications re-inserted the language the City had deleted, among other 
refinements.  Part 3 also contained language that would have allowed below grade parking 
garages for commercial structures to be constructed within a bluff edge setback.  
Modifications were suggested to prohibit such structures from being constructed in the 
setback. 
 
On July 2, 2010, the Laguna Beach City Council adopted Resolution No. 10.083 
acknowledging receipt of the Coastal Commission action and, except for their proposed 
changes to Policy 12-F, accepting and agreeing to the suggested modifications to the 
City’s Local Coastal Program and also requesting final certification by the California 
Coastal Commission.  The City has submitted the modifications to the Executive Director 
for a determination that they are consistent with the Commission’s action on March 10, 
2010 (Exhibit #2). 
 
As provided in Section 13544 of the California Code of Regulations, the Executive Director 
must determine whether the City's action is legally adequate and report that determination 
to the Commission.  In this case, the Executive Director has determined that the City's 
action is legally adequate.  Unless the Commission objects to the Executive Director's 
determination, the certification of Laguna Beach LCP Amendment No. 3-08 (except for the 
changes to Policy 12-F that are being processed as a separate resubmittal) shall become 
effective upon the filing of the required Notice of Certification with the Secretary of 
Resources as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21080.5(d)(2)(E). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission CONCUR with the Executive Director’s 
determination as set forth in the attached letter (a letter that substantially conforms with 
Exhibit #1 to be sent after Commission endorsement). 
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January ##, 2011 
 
John Montgomery 
City of Laguna Beach 
505 Forest Avenue 
Laguna Beach, CA 92651 
 
Subject: EFFECTIVE CERTIFICATION OF LAGUNA BEACH LOCAL COASTAL   
  PROGRAM AMENDMENT 3-08, PARTS 1 AND 3 
 
Dear Mr. Montgomery: 
 
We are pleased to notify you that on January 12, 2011, the Commission concurred with the 
Executive Director’s determination that the action of the City of Laguna Beach accepting 
certification of Local Coastal Program (LCP) Amendment No. 3-08, parts 1 and 3, with suggested 
modifications was legally adequate.  Therefore, the LCP amendment will be fully effective upon 
filing of the notice of the Commission’s certification with the Secretary of the Resources Agency as 
provided by Public Resources Code Section 21080.5(d)(2)(v). 
 
The City of Laguna Beach requested to amend its certified Local Coastal Program (LCP) to make 
three unrelated changes to the certified LCP: Part 1) land use designate and zone the 8.52 acre 
site at 1900 Laguna Canyon Road (known as ACT V) to Public/Institutional land use designation 
and Institutional zone; Part 2) amend Land Use Element Policy 12-F to allow exceptions to an 
existing 500 square foot size limit for buildings located in Public Recreation and Parks land use 
designation for structures deemed by the City as necessary to provide public benefit uses; and, 
Part 3) make changes to the Implementation Plan to clarify how building heights are measured and 
parking garage regulations, within certain zones. Proposed LCP Amendment Request No. 3-08 
was submitted for Commission certification by City Council Resolution Nos. 07.077, 08.064, and, 
08.072.   
 
On March 10, 2010, the Commission approved the amendment subject to suggested modifications 
to bring the amendment into conformity with the policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act, and the 
land use plan.  On July 2, 2010, the Laguna Beach City Council adopted Resolution No. 10.083 
acknowledging receipt of the Coastal Commission action and, except for their proposed changes to 
Policy 12-F (Part 2), accepted and agreed to the suggested modifications to the City’s Local 
Coastal Program and also requested final certification by the California Coastal Commission.  On 
January 12, 2011, the Commission concurred with the Executive Director’s determination that the 
City Council's acceptance of the Commission’s suggested modification was legally adequate. 
 
Please note that although LGB-MAJ-3-08 originally included changes to Policy 12-F of the certified 
Land Use Plan, the City decided to adopt alternative language.  Thus, that component of the 
amendment request (Part 2) is being processed separately as a resubmittal, pursuant to the 
requirements of Coastal Act Section 30512(b) and Section 13541 of the Commission's regulations 
(see LGB-MAJ-4-10).  You will receive separate notification regarding the status of that 
resubmittal. 
 
Please forward three copies of the entire updated Local Coastal Plan as approved by the 
Commission to the South Coast District office at your earliest convenience. 
 
On behalf of the Coastal Commission, I would like to congratulate the City on the completion of 
LCP Amendment 3-08.  If you have any questions, please contact Meg Vaughn at our Long Beach 
office (562) 590-5071. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Teresa Henry 
District Manager 
 
cc:  Ann Larson, Planning Manager 
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